BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:
COSTCO CORP. DBA COSTCO
PHARMACY #454

115 Technology Drive

Irvine, CA 92618

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 41247
LAURA CODY MORRIS

215 Deinenger Circle

Corona, CA 92880

Pharmacfst License No. RPH 46609

Respondents.

Case No. 5324
OAH No. 2015081057

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
ORDER (COSTCO)

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on September 23, 2016.

It is so ORDERED on August 24, 2016.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

i

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

GREGORY J. SALUTE
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
DeSIREE I KELLOGG ‘
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 126461
600 West Broadway, Suite 1800
San Diego, CA 92101
P.O. Box 85266
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
-Telephone: (619) 645-2996
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061
Attorneys for Compldinant

BEFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against;

COSTCO CORP. DBA COST(“O

PHARMACY #454
115 Technology Drive
Irvine, CA 92618 .

Pharmﬁcy Permit No. PHY 41247
LAURA CODY MORRIS

215 Deinenger Circle
Corona, CA 928380

| Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609

Respondents.

Case No. 5324

OATI No. 2015081057

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
ORDER (COSTCO)

ITIS HERTBY bTIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the partles to the above-«

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true;

PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.

She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (5324)
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" D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Desiree I Kellogg, Deputy Attomey

General,
2. Costco Wholesale Corporation, doing business as Costco Pharmacies (Non-

Respondent Costco) and Respondent Costeo Corporaﬁon, doing business as Costco Pharmacy

#454 (Respondent Costco #454) are represented in this proceeding by attorneys Helaine W,

Heydemann and Brandie Gasper of Locke Lord LLP, whose address is: 111 South Wacker D11ve
Chicago, 11, 60606 and 300 South Grand Avenue, Suite 2600, Los Angeles, CA 90071.

" 3. Onorabout November 12, 1995, the Boatd of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit No,
PHY 41247 to Respondent Costco #454. The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effé,ot at all

' times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 5324, and will expire on October 1, 2016, '

unless renewed.
4. On ot about August 19, 1993, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License

Number RPH 46609 to Laura Cody Morris. The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect -

at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on June 30, 2017, unless

renewed.,”

JURISDICTION

5. A_écusation No. 5324 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of

‘Consumer A:ffaifs, and is currently pending against Respondent. "The Accusation and all other
" statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on April 13, 2015,

Respondent Costco #454.den1'ed the al};ega’tioné of wrongdoing, denied any violation of law, and |

timely filed its Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. Non'—Respondent Costco #454

consents to Junsdlcuon thr ough 1ts management and superv1s1on of Respondent Costco #454, For

~ purposes of this Stipulated Settlement Order, Non-Respondent Costco includes all Costco

pharmacies in California.

6. Acopy of Accusation No. 5324 and of Costco #454°s Answer and Notice of Defense

are attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (5324)
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ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS
7. Respondent Costeo #454 and Non—Re%pondem Costco have carefully read, fully

discussed with counsel, and understands the char ges and gllegatlons in Accusation No. 5324,
Respondent Costeo #454. and Non-Respondent Costco have also carefully read, fully discussed
with counsel,‘ and ngiefstands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

| 8. .Respondent Costco #454 and Non-Respondent Costeo are fully aware of their legal
rights in this matter, including the right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the
Accusation, the rlght to confront and cross-examine the witnesses ,lagainst them; the right to

present evidence and to tést_iﬂf on their own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to

compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration

and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. |

9. Respondent Costco #45 4 and Non—Respondent Costco voluntanly, knowingly, and -
mtelhgen’dy waives and glVes up gach and every rlght set i"orth above

CULPABILITY

10.  Respondent Costco #454 understands and agrees that the charges and allegations in

" Accusation No, 5324, if proven at a hearing, bopstitute cause for imposing discipline upon its.

Pha:rmacy Permit.

11, For the purpose of resolving the Accusa‘mon without the expense and mcerta.mty of

- further proceedings, Respondent Costco #454 agrees that, at a hearing, Complainant could

establish é factnal basis for the charges in the Accusation, and that Respondent Costeo #454

hereby gives up its right to contest those charges. Respondent Costco #454 denies the charges in -

the Accusation.

12. Respondent Costeo agrees that its Pharmacy Permit is subject to discipline and agrees '

to be bound by the Board's probationary tetms, as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below.

CONTINGENCY

13.  This stipulat;foﬁ shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent /

Costco #454 and Non-Respondent Costco understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant

3
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‘and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy may communicate directly with the Board regarding this

stipulation and settlement, without notice to or_participation by Respondent Costco #454-and

Non-Respondent Costeo or their counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondeht Costco #454

and Non-Respondent Costco understand and agree that they may not withdraw its agreement or

seck to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board ‘considers and acts upon it. If the Board

fails to ﬁdopt this stipulaﬁon as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary |

Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal

[ aétion between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqﬁal_iﬁed from further action by having

considered this matter,

14, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
_cbpies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary “Order, inc_:lv;_din'g PDF and facsimile

signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals.

15.  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the compléte, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement.

It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,

_l negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary

" Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a

writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.

16. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that |

the Board may, without further notice or formal p_rocéeding, issue and enter the following

Disciplinary Order:

| DISCIPLINARY ORDER L
ITIS I-IERBBY ORDERED that Costco Wholesale Corporation, doing bﬁsiness as Costco
Pharmacies (N Qn-—R.efspoﬁdcnt Costco) shall:
1.  Continuing Education .
Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, Non~Responden’t Costeo shall
submit to the Board or its designee, for prior approval, an appropriate program of continuing '
¢ducation (C.E.) related to c.:orresponding resp;msibility for all of its Pharmacy Regional

4
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Managers with superviso_ry authority over California pha:ﬂnacies. The program of C.E. shall
r;onsist‘of at least six (6) hours, which shall be completed in-person within one (1) year of the
effective date of this decigion, al Non-Respondent Costco’s own expense. Failure to timely
submit ot oomplete the approved C.E. shall be considered a v101a1:10n of thls agmement unless an
mdmdual Pha,rmacy Regional Manager was unable to complete the tralmng for personal reasons
or other good cause shown acceptable to the Board. Non-Respondent Costco shall submit written
proof in a fqrfn acceptable to the board, of such succéssful completion of C.E. to the board or itg
designee; | | '
2. Controlled Subétancé Prescription Documelntation

Non-ReSpondent Costco shall continue to have in place policies and procedures to 1dent1fy
and respond to circumnstances raising suspicions about the legitimacy or legitimate medical
purpose of & pre_scription for controlled substances and documentation used to implement those
policies and précedures which is consistent with such policies and procedures. Non-Respondent
Costeo shall also continue té have its pharmacy staff doeument the pharmacists’ (full-time aﬁd

pari-time pharniacists who are currently employed and will be emf)loyed by Non-Respondent

Cosgleo) exe'rcise of their corresponding responsibility, including patient information obtained,

any “red flag” assessments, the manner in which due diligence to assess the “red flags” was

,exércised, the decision to Arej-ect filling a prescription for controlled substances and the identity of
the pharmacist who made the decision to fill or reject a pfescription for controlled substances.
3. Corresponding Responsibility Policy = -

' Non-Respondent Costeo shall have its California pharmaciéts (full-time and part-time -
pharmacists ‘Who are currently employed and will be employed by Non-Respondent Costco)
execute.a document which reflects or electronically acknowledges that Non-Respondent Costco
(a) understands and recognizes that pursuant to Health & Safety Code section _111_53(&), a
corresponding responsibility resté with the pharmaciét who fills a prescription for a controlled
substance 1o enste thai; a prescription ‘for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a

legitimate medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her

professional practice; and (b) Non-Respondent Costco _Lmderstands and recognizes the law which

5
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 prevents the impairment of the pharmacist’s exercise of his or her corresponding responsibility set
p P g resp

forth in Health & Safety Code section 11153, Failure to have its pharmacists execute such a -
document within 60 days of this' Stipulated Settlement Order shall.be a violation of this
a;greement. ‘ _ .
4. Readily Retrievable Corresponding Responsibilitf Records
Non—Respondent Costeo shall maintain and make available for inspection all records
pertaining to the dlspenmng of controlled substam,es in a readily retrievable form, for the penod
required by law. Failure to maintain such records or make them_avallai_ale_ for inspection shall be
congidered a violation of this agreement. - _ | _ |
IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 41247 issﬁgd 1o
Respondeni: Costeo Corporation, c_ioi_ng buginess as Costco Pharmacy #454 is revol-ced. However,
the revocation is stayed a_nd Respondent Costeo #454 is ﬁlaced on.probation for three (3) years on
ti’lB following terms and conditions. | o |
5. 'Obey All Laws
Respondent Costeo #454 shall obey all state and federal laws and fegulations. :
Respondent Costco #454 shall report any of {he following occﬁrrenges to the board, in Writiﬁg,'
within seventy -two (72) hours of such occurrence: | |
(i an arrest or issuance of a criminal complamt for violation of any prov151on of thc
| ~ Pharmacy Law state and federal food and drug laws, or state and i:edelal controlled
substances laws
1 aplea’of guilty or nclJIo contendre in any state. or federal criminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information ér indictment o
O ‘aconviction of any crime |
1 discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency
| which involves respondent’s pharmacy permit or which is related to the prabtice.of
pharrﬁeicy or 'thémanufach;ring,- obtaining, handling,of distributing, billing, or
- charging for any drug, device or conﬁ*olléd subsiance.
Failure to timely report any such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation.

6 .
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6.  Reportto the Board

- Respondent Costeo #454 shall réport to the board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the

- board or its designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among

other requirements, Costco #454 shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there
has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure to submit timely

reports in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any period(s) of

delinquencj;-f in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of probation.

Moteover, if the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shail be automatically
extended until such fime as the final report is made and accepfed by the board.
7. Interview with the Board

- Uponreceipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent Costco #454 shall appear in person for

 interviews with the board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the

board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to
board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the board or its |
designeé during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of prof)ation.

| 8. .Coo-perate with Board Staff |

| Respondent Costco #454 shéll cooperate with the board's.inspection program and with the

bo afci's monitoring and investi gation of respondent’s compliance with the terms and conditions of
their probatioh. Failure t@ cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation.

-9, .Reimlbu'rsgment of Board Costs ‘

As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, Respondent Costco #454

shall pay to the board iis costs of investigation and prosecution in the amount of $16,866.00

within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Decision. Failure to pay costs by the

 deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.

The. filing of bankruptoy by Respondent Costeo #454 shall not relieve it of its responsibility
to reimburse the board its costs of investigation and prosecutibn.
1% P.robation Mbnitoring Costs

Respondent Costeo #454 shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as

7
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determined by the board each and every year of probdtioﬁ. Such costs shall be payable to the
board on a schedule és directed by the anrd or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the
deadline(s) as directed éhalllbe congidered a violatioﬁ of probatidn.

11. ‘Status of License

‘Responderit Costco #4354 shall, at all times while on probation, maintain curr.ent licensure
with the board. If Respondent Costco #454 submits an application to the board, and the
appllcatlon is approved, for a change of location, change of permit or change of ownershlp, the

boatrd shali retain continuing jurisdiction over the license, and the respondent shall remain on

" probation as determined by the board. Failure to maintain current licensure shall be considered a

violation of probation.
1f Respondent Costco #454's license expires or is cancelled by operation of law or

otherwise at any time during the period of probation, 111clud1ng any extensmna thereof or

otherwise, upon renewal or reapplication Respondent Costeo #454's 11cense shal] be subj ect to all

terms and conditions of this probation not prewously saustled. :
12.  License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension.
Following the effective date of this decision, should Respondent Costco #454 discontinue

business, Respondent Costco #454 may tender the premises license to the board for surrender. .

" The board or its designee shall have the discretion Whemer to grant the reque.st for sulrcndel or

take any other action it deems appropriate and reasonable Upon formal acceptance of the .
surrender of the license, Respondent Costco #454 will no longer be subject to the, terms and
conditions of probation. |
- Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent Costeo #454 shall relinquish the premises

wall and renewal license to the board within ten (10) days of notification by the board that the
sm‘rendei~ is accepted. Respondent Céstco #454 shall further submit a completed Discontinuance
df -Bﬁsiﬁcss form accordi.ng 1o board gﬁideii‘nes and shall notify the board of the records inveiitor.y
transfer.  * ‘ -

~ Respondent Costco #454 shali also, by the eﬂ_‘ective datt; of this deciéion, arrange for the,
continuation of caré- for ongoing patients of the pharmacy by, at minimum, providing a writtei

8
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- notice to ongoing patients that specifies the anticipated closing date of the pharmacy and that

identifies one or more area phatmacies capable of taking up the patients’ care, and by cooperating
as may be necessary in the transfer of records or prescriptions for ongoing patients. Within five

days of'its provision to the pharmacy’s ongoing patients, Respondent Costco #454 shall provide a

copy of the written notice to the board. For the purposes of this provision, "ongoing patients”

means those patients for whom the pharmacy has on file a prescription with one or more refills
outstanding, or for whom the pharmacy has filled a présci'iption within the preceding sixty (60)
days. ' |

- Respondent Costco #454 may not apply for any new licensure from the board for three (3)

" years from the éffective date of the surrender. Respondent Costco #454 shall meet all

rcquucments applicable to the hceme sought as of the date the apphcatlon for that 11cense is

submitted to the board

ResPcmdent Costco #454 further stipulates that it shall relmburse the board for its costs of

mvesngauon and prosecumon prior to the acceptance of the surrender

13. Notice to Employees = |
Respondent Costeo #454 shall, upon or before the éffective date of this decision, ensure that

all employees involved in permit operations are made aware of all the terms and conditions of

‘probation, cither by posting a notice of the terms and conditions, circulating such notice, or both,

" If done by notice, it shall be poéted in a prominent place in the employee area and shall remain

posted throughout the probation period. Respondent Costeo #454 shall ensure that any
emﬁioyees hired or used after the effective date of this decision are made aware of the terms and

condltlons of probation by posting a notice, cuculatmg a notice, or both. Addmonally,

_' 1espondent owner shall sublmt writlen notification to the board, W1th111 thirty (3 O) days of the

effective date of this decision, that this term has been satisfied. . Failure to submit such .

notification to the board shall be considered a violation of probation. "Employées” as used in this

provision includes all ﬁllintime, part-time, volunteer, temporary and relief employees and

independent contractors employed or hired involved in pharmacy permit operations at any time

' during probation.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (5324)
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14. Owners and Officers: Knowledge of the Law _

Respi;ndent Costeo #454 shall provide, within thirty (30) days after the effc—:ctive date of
this decision, signed and dated siatements from NonFRespondcnt Costeo’s pharmacy officers
(vice president and senior vice president), stating under penalty of perjury that said individuals
have read and are familiar with sta%e and federal laws and regulations governing the practice of

pharmacy. The failure to timely provide said statements under penélty of perjury shall be

- considered a violation of probation.

15, Posted Notice of Probation .
Respondent Costoo #454 shall prominénﬂy posta probation notice provided by the board in

eiplace conspicuous and readable to the public.: The probation notice shall remain posted duﬂng'

the entire period of probation. .

Respondent Costco #454 shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or make

any statement wh.ic}i is intended to mislead or is Iikely‘to, have me.effcct of misleading any

| patient, customer, member of the public, or other person(s) as to the nature of and reason for the ;

probation of the licensed eritity, |
Failure to post sﬁ.ch notice sflall be considered a violation of probation.
16. Violation of Probation | |
If Respondent Cosfcé#454 has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the

board shall have continuing jurisdiction over respondent license, and probation shall be :

automatically extended until all terms and conditions have béen satisfied or the board has taken

other action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, fo:
terminate probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.
If Respondent Costco #454 violates probation in any respect, the board, after giving

Respondent Costeo #454 notice and an opportunity to be, heard, may revoke probation and carry

" out the disciplinary order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for

those provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay
and/or revocation of the license. If a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against -

Costeo #454 during probation, the board shall have cbntinuing jurisdiction and the period- of

10
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probation shall be automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is -
heard and decided. | | |

17. " Completion of Probation

This Stipulated Settlement Order inc.orporates and resolves any open or pending
investigation of corresponding tesponsibility obligations involving Costco #454 of which the -

Board has notice at the time of the execution of the Order. Upon written notice by the board or its

designee indicating successful completion of probation, Respondent Costco #454°s license will be| -

" fully restored.

18. Consultant for Owner
During the period of probation, Respondent Costco #454 shall retain an independent -

consultant at its own-expense who shall be responsible for reviewing pharmacy operations on a

_' quarterly basis for compliance by Respondent Costeo #454 with state and federal laws and |

regulations governing the practice of pharmacy. The consultant shall be a pharmacist licensed by
and not on probation with the Board who has expertise in corresponding responsibility
requirements and whose name shall be submitted to the Board or its designee, for prior approleal,

within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this dectsion. Failﬁre to timeiy retain, seek

| approval of, or ensure timely reporting by the consultant shall be considered a violation of

probation.

During the period of proba’uon, the Board or its designee, retams the d1soret10n to reduce
thc frequency of the pharmacist consultant’s review of Respondent Costco #454 8 operatzons

19. Commumty Service Program '

Within sisty (60) days of 1he effective date of this decision, Respondent Costco #454 shall
submlt 10 the Board or 1ts desxgnee for prior approval, a communuy service program in which
Rcspondent Costeo #454 shall provide free sharp disposal containers or provide free or at-a

reduced cost immunizations, brown bag consultations, or othet healthcare related services to a

" community, charitable facility or agency valuing $50,000.00. Within thirty (30) days of board

appréval thereof, Respondent Costeo #454 shall submit documentation to the Board

demonstrating commencement of the community service program. Respondent Costco #4354 shall

11
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| of the Board of Pharmacy.

| conditions and other matters contatned in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Ordet.

| 1 approve its form and content.

éomplete'tlw community service program and report on that compléli(m to the board within six
(6) mouths of the effective date of the decision, Alternatively, {Cosico #454 may pay to the Board
£30,000.00 as settlement of the obligation in this Section~19, |
ACCUITANCE

On behall of Non-R,&spondent Costeo and Respondent Costeo #454, 1 have .carei‘uily tead
the above Stipulated Setilement and Disciplinary Order and have fully discussed it with my
attorney, Flelaine W, Heydemann and Br@dic Gasper, [ understand the slipulation and the effect
it wiil have on Non~RcspondenL Costc-o and Respondent Costeo #454°s Pharmacy Permit No,

Pl iY 41247 and other pharmacy pumata [ enter into thu; .Supulau,d ’%ettlemmt anci Dﬂctplmmy

Oldbl‘ vol unlmﬂy, knowingly, and intelligently, and aglee to be bound by the Dcuaum and Ordet

DATED: //f T m@w/ // ,4«5___ -
Authorized agent on hc,ha Hof COSTCO ‘
WHOLESATE CORPORATION, DOING BUSINESS
A8 COSTCO PIIARMACIES AND COSTCO
CORPORATION, DOING BUSINESS AS COSTCO

PHARMACY #454
Respondent and Non-Respondeni

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Cosico Corporation the terms and

DaTED: 6/1%/ 16

—t e b i e e

-[' fJI-: 2
Altorney for RLS]JO!K[ET]‘;

12
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ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby réspeétfully

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.

DATED: - (_0 / / qf / /L) 7 Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS :
Attorney General of California

SD2014708110
81337111.doc

re
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Artorney General of California
GRECORY J. SALUTE .
Supervising Deputy Aftorney General
DrsIREE L KBLLOGG |
Deputy Attorney Ceneral
Siate Bar No, 126461
110 West "A™ Sfreet, Suite 1100
San Diego, CA 92101 °
P.O. Box 85266 -
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
Telephone: (619) 645-2996
Facsimile; (619) 645-2061
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
- BOARD OF PHARMACY .
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA -

In the Matter of the Accusation Agzn’nst: Case No. 5324

COSTCO CORP. DBA COSTCO
PHARMACY #454

115 Technology Drive " |ACCUSATION
Irvine, CA 92618 e -
Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 41247
LAURA CODY MORRIS

2900 Bakers St.

Costa Mesa, CA

Pharmacist License No. RPEH 46609

Respondents.

Complainant alleges:
| PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold {Cbm]':!lainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consuéner Affairs.

2. On or about November 12, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit

il Number PHY 41247 to Costeo .Co_rp., doing business as Costoo Pharmacy #454 (Reéponclent
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Costeo Pharmacy). The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relsvant to the

charges brought herein and will expire on October 1, 2015, unless renewed.

3. On or about August 19, 1993, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
Number RPH 4660% to Laura Cody Morris [Réspoﬁdent Laura Cady Morris). The Pharmacist
License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will
expire on June 30, 2015, unless renewed. |

JURISDICTION

‘4. This Accusation is broughit before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of

| Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the

‘Business and Professions Code unléss otherwise indicated.

5. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Bozard shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bﬁs. & Préf. Code, § 4000 et seg.] and th&_Uniform Controlled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

6. Section 4300(=) of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be

suspended or revoked,

7. Section 4300.1 i)f the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspensicn of a board-issued license
by operation of law or by order ar decision of the board or a court of law, the
placement of & license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a Ticense by a
licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proeeeding against, the licensee or to render
& decision suspending or revoking the license.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY FROVISIONS

8. Section 4301 of the Code slates in pertinent part:

 The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of
unprof essional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or

mistepresentation or jssued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct ahall include, but is
not limitsd to, any of the ifoilown"zg

()} The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the
United States regulating controlled substances and dangemus drugs....

]
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(o) Viqiatingr‘ attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or
abetting the violation of or conspiring o violate any provision or term of this chapter
or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy,

including regulations established by the board or any other state or federal regulatory
agency.

9. Section 4113{c) of the Code states:

The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a phermacy’s compliance
with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.

10.  Health and Safety Code section 11153(a) states:

A prescription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a legitimate
medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her
professional practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of
controlled substances is upon the prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding
responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the preseription. Except as
anthorized by this division, the following are not legal prescriptions: (1) an order
purporting to be a prescription which is issued not in the usuat course of o
professional treatment or in legitimate and autharized researchy;, or (2) an order for an
addict or habifual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of
professional treatment or as part of an authorized narcotic treatment program, for the
purpose of providing the user with controlled substances, sufficient to keep him or

~ her comfortable by maintaining customary use, :

11.  Section 1707.3 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a
patient’s diug therapy and medication record before-each preseription diug is
delivered. The review shall include sereening for severe potential drug therapy
problems, ’ - ‘

12, Seciion 1761 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

(a) No pharmacist shall compound or dispense any prescription which contains
any significant error, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration.
Upon receipt of any such prescription, the pharmacist shall contact the pescriber to
obtain the information needed to validate {he prescription.

(b) Even after conferring with the preseriber, a pharmacist shall not compound
or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist knows or has -

objective reason to know that said prescription was not issued for a legitimate
medical purpose.

23
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COST RECOVERY
13.  Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may 1'equestlthé
aclministraﬁva law judge to direct & licentiate found to have committed a v?olation or viclations of
the licensing act to pay 2 swn not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

enforcement of the case.

DRUGS

14,  Ambien is the brand name for zolpidem, a Schedule I'V controlied substance pursuant |

to Health and Safety Code section 11057(d) and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and

Professions Cade sect:on 4022,

15, Klonopin i's the brand name for clonazepam, a Schedule [V controlled substance
pursuant td Health and Safety Code section 1 1057(b)(7) and a dangelous drug purstant to

Business and Pmi‘essmns Code secﬁon 4027’

16. MS Contin is the biand name for morphine sulfate, a Schedule I controlled substance

pursuant to I:Ie_alth'and Safety Code section 1 1055(m) (L) and 2 dangerous drug pursuant to

"Business and Professiotis Code seotion 4022,

17. Oxycontin and OxylIR are brand names for oxycodone or oxycedene ER respectively
and are Schedule IT cantrolled substances pursuant to Health and Safety Code section

T1055(b) 1Y) and.da.plgerbus drugs pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022,

18.  Percocet is the brand name for acetaminophenfoxycodone, a Schedule II controlisd
substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11055(b)(1)(L) and a dangerous drug

pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022. _

19. -Somais thé brand name for carisporodol, & Schedule TV oontrplled substance pursuant
to Health and Safety Code section 11055(b)(1)(L) and 2 dangerous drug pursuant 1o Business and
Professions Code section 4022, | |

20, Vicodin/Norco is the brand name for acetaminophen/hydrocodone, a Schedule 111

cgantrolled substance pu::‘sua.nt to Health and Safety Code section 11056(e)(5) and a dangetous

drug pursnant to Business and Professions Code section 4022.
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.the patient has occurred.”

Supervisor. The policy and procedure further provided that “only in exireme cases and only upon

21, Xanax is the brand name for alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant

to Health and Safety Code section 11057(d)(1) and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 4022, |
FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

22, me November 17, 1995 through February 21, 2014 Respondent Laura Morris was
the. Pharrmcmt—m Charge of Respondent Costeo Phalmacy _

23. - Effective 2000 through Qctober 2009, Respondent Costco Pharmacy implemented a
policy setting forth the pararneters for its pharmacists 16 dispense controlled substances to |
petients, Tllis policy and procedure provided that Respondent Costeo Pharmacy could only
support its pharrriacist’s:déoision to decliﬁe to fill & prescription for controiled substances if it was

“pased on sound medical reasoning and the appropriate commumnication with the prescriber and .

24, Effective November 28,2009 ths,ough July 11,2012, Respondent Costeo Pharmacy
implemented a- revised policy and procedure sattmg forth the parameters for its pharmacists to
dispense controlled substances to patients. Th1s policy and procedure provided that Respondent
Costco Pharmacy would only support a p'harmacist’é decision to deny filling a pre';cription for

controlled substanccs‘if that decision was reviewed and approved by a Regional Pharmacy

collaboration with your Regional Pharmacy Supervisor will rafu‘sal'o'f pharmacy service be
considered. .. Prior to refusing to fill a preécription OR. denying any immediate or future pharmacy
service for suspicion of fraud, the pharmacist on duty or pharmacy manager must contact the
Ragiohal Pharmacy Supervisor... There must be no doubt that a prescription is frandulént prior to
taking any action or refusing p‘ha'rﬁiacy service dnd then 0111y_w1th the proper approvals.. If need
be, dispense enough of the medication until the prescriber can be contacted 1o confirm fraud.”
25, Effective July 12, 2012 through June 3, 2013; Respoﬁdent Costco Pharmacy
implemented a revised policy and procedure (Controlled Substance Dispensing Policy) setting
forth the parameters for its‘pluarnlacists to dispense oontro_lleﬁ. substances {0 patients, The revised
policy and pmcedﬁrr;: provided that “[wlhen presentsd with ar ccmtrolled substance prescription,

5
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Costco pharmacists must balance providing a high level of member service with ensuring that the
presoription i valid and issued for o Jegitimate medical purpose. Each controlled substance
preseription should be evaluated for ‘when to fill, when to question, when to delay and when to
refuse.”™ The policy and procedure still required the Regional Pharmacy Supervisor’s review aid
approval before the filling of a controtled sﬁbs:tancc: preseription could be denied, [n order to

deny filling a controtled substance prescripiion, a phavmacist had 10 show that there was “clear

‘evidence-or sufficient reason to suspect & forgery or otherwise invalid prescription” except if there

was “tonfirmed evidence of overlapping therapy” or “confirmation of a fraudulent prescription.”
The policy and proceldure- further provided that “[wlith few excei::tions (see Coniroiled Substance
Dispénsing Policy)" collaboration with your Regional Pharmacy Supervisor is necessary before
refusal of vour jgharmasy service. .. There must be no doubt that a prescription 1s faudnlent prior
to.taking any action or refusing pharmacy services.” -

26. From 2000 through May 2013, the Régidn&l Pharma'cy Supervisor made the ultimate
decision as 1o whether to dispense « controlled substance prescription. A pharmacist could also
ot contact law enforcement about a questionable controllea substance prescription without prior

approval and knowledge of the Regional Pharmacy Supervisor and Warehouse Management.

- Pharmacists were disciplined for violating these policies and procecures.

27. Asa result of these policies and procedures, Respondents impeded phanmacists 'ﬁ‘pnﬁ
exercising their professional judgm‘en-t to fill controlled substance prescriptions and to fulfill their
conesponding 1'33pdnsilbility to ens-tﬁe that controlled Substan@ prescriptions were issued for
legitimate medical purposes, These policies and procedures further allowed for the élispcnsing, '
filling and furnishing of drugs without legitimate medical purposes by Respondents and for a lack
of research. or verifying if preseriptions were wrilen for a legitimate medical purpose before
filling them, as diséussed in the following paragraphs.

28.  From Mav 13, 2007 through August 25, 2010, Respondents filled and _clisj:ensgd 156
controlled substances preseriptions written by Dr. LT, The average age of Dr. L.Ts patients was
28 years old, The majority of 'ti1e:ss prescriptions were paid in cash. Patients raveled an average
of 33 miles from Dr. L.T.'s offices 1o Respondent Costeo Pharmacy. Dr. L.T. was not certified as

6
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a pain managenicm provlider or affiliated with the American Board of Physical Medicine an'd
Rehabilitation. There was no stepwise plan for anti-anxiety as Dr. LT ’s prescriptions were
written for an initial thcrapy.'that began with high doses of anti-anxiety medications without
evidence.of prior therapy that would have suggested a stepwise approach,

29, On February 3, 2012, a Second Amended Accusation was filed against Dr, L.T. for - |
among other causes for discipline, gross negligence, 1'elaéated negligent acts, issuing controlted
substances prcscription% for an illegitimate purpose, making and sipning false doéumcnts
unprofessional conduct for dlspcnsmg, preseribing and frnishing dangerous dmgs without an
appropriate prior e*{ammatlon and medical indication to patients, excessive prescribing and

committing dishonest/corrupt acts. Effective March 14, 2012, the Osteopathic Moedical Board of

California accepted the surrender of Dr. L.T.'s osteopathic physician and surgeon certificate,

30, From February 2, 2006 through July 5, 2006, Respondents filled and dispensed 20
preseriptions written by Dr. “\f' L. The avcrage age of Dr. V.L.’s patients was 24 yeals oldl Dr.
V.L.’s preseriptions were written for an excessive quantlty of comsolled substances (: €,
hydrocodone/APAP 10/325mg with the average number of tablcts equaling 180) and unusually
high dosages or strength (p; ¢., 40-50 mg of hydrocodone and 1-1.5 mg of Tylenol per day).
Patients traveled an average of 17 miles from Dr. V.L.’s offices to Respondent Costeo Phermacy.

Dr, V.1 was not certified ag a pain management provid.ﬁ or affiliated with the ‘American Board of
Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. -

31, On Tune 15,2009, in the United States District Court for the Central District of

California, Dr. V.L. pleaded guilty to 15 counts charging violations of Title 18 U.S.C. § g41

(@ (1), intentional and unlawful distribution and dispensing of Schedule II amli 1T controlled

| substances ouiside the scope of professional practice. Effective October 1,2010, the Medical

Board of California adopted & Decision revoking his license for conrvictions of crimes that are
substantially related to the pracuce of medicine, violating federal laws regulating dangerous rlrugs
or controlled substances and ongagmg in acts involving dlshonesty or comuption,

.32, From July 27, 2005 through November 19, 2008, Respondents filled and dispensed 47

prescriptions written by Dr. C.G. The average age of Dr. C.G."s patients was 26 years old.

2
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Patients traveled an average of 27 miles from Dr. C.G.’s offices to Respondent Costco Phatmacy,
Dr. C.G. was not certified as a,péin management provider or affiliated with the American Board
of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. There was ‘110 stepwise plan for anti-anxiety as Dr.
C.G.’s preseriptions were written for an initial therapy that began with high doses of anti-anxicty
medications without evidence of prior therapy that would have suggested a stepwise approach,

33, On or about June 11,2008, Dr, C.G. was convicted upon her plea of nelo contendere

in a criminal proceeding filed in Los Angeles County Superior Court to the felonies of unlawfully

prescribing controlled substances, in violation of Health and Safety Code section 11153(a) and

prescribing or administering prescription drugs to an addict or habitual user, in violation of Health

“and Safety Code section 11156, On or about September 12, 2008, a First Amended Accusation

was filed againgt Dr. C.G. for among other causes for discipline, gross negligence, repeated
negligent acts, px‘escribillg to an addiet, preseribing without appropriaté: examination, failure to |
maintain adequate and acourate records.and excessive prescribing. Effsctive March 23, 2009, Dr.
C.Gos piaﬁfsician and surgeon’s certiﬁ‘cz.tte was placed on probation for seven years by the Medical
Board of California, 7
 FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Failing to Comply with Corresponding Respomnsibility
for Legitimate Controlied Substs;nue Prescriptions) _
34. Respondents are subject to disciplinary 'actiDn.under Code section 4301(j), for -

violating Flealth and Safety Code section 11153(a), in that they failed to comply with their

' cormapondmg responsibility to ensure that controlled substences were dispensed for a- lcgmmaie

medical puposs when Respondents furnished preseriptions for controlied substances even though
‘red flags” were present, indicating those prescriptions were not issued for a legitimate medical
purpose, as set forth in paragraphs 22 through 33 above, which are incorporated herein by

reference.
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dispensing Controlled Substance Prescriptions with Significant Exrors, (jllaissions;,

| Trregularities, Uncertainties, Ambiguities or Alterations)

35. Respondents are subject to d'iscipl{nary action under Code section 4301(o), for
violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, sectﬁons 1761(a) and (b) in that they dispénsed
prescriptions for controlled substances, which contained significant errors, omissions,
irregularities, unceﬂamtms ambiguities or altcxahons as set forth in paragraphs 22 through 33

above, which are incorporated herein by mfcrcncc

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{(Unprofessional Conr]uct)

36, Rcspondents are Sl.lb_] ect to disciplinary action under Code section 4301 for
unprofessional conduct i that they engaged in the activities described in paragmphs 22 through
33 above, which are incorporated herein by reference.

o DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS
37.. .To determine the degree of discipliﬂé, if any, to be ifniaosed on Respondent Cosico

Phermacy, Complainant alleges-that on May 17, 2012, the Board issued Citation number CT 2011

49350 against Respondent Costeo Pharmacy tor violating California Code of Regulations, title

16, section 1764 and Civil Code section 56.10 for the ﬁnautlhorized disclosure of prescription and

medical information. The Board issved a fine which Respondent paid.
- PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Co.mpl_ain.ant requests thai 2 hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and th;':rt follovxcing the he:.aring,-the: Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: _
1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PH'Y 41247 issued to Costeo
Corp doing business as Costco Pharmacy #454 '

2. Revokmg or suspendmg Pharmacist License Numbel RPH 46609 issued to Laura
Cody Morris; ‘
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3. Ordering Costco Corp., doing business as Costeo Pharmacy #454 and Laura Cogdy
Maoiris to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of
this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3;

4. Taking such other and fixther action as deemed necessary and proper,

YN R YRR,

VIRGINIA HEROLD
Executivefficer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California ‘
Complainant

802014708110
71024298.doc
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